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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2001

REELE:

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In the opinion of the
directors, Luckman Trading Limited is the Company’s
controlling shareholder, which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

During the year, the Group was involved in the
following principal activities:

° sales of photographic products
° newspaper publishing*

. commercial printing*

° property holding*

* newly acquired businesses during the year
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
the remeasurement of certain fixed assets and
investment in securities, as further explained below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2001. The
results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are consolidated from or to their effective
date of acquisition or disposal, respectively. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances
within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2001

u B

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The gain or loss on disposal of a subsidiary represents
the difference between the proceeds of the sale and
the Group’s share of its net assets together with any
goodwill or capital reserve which was not previously
charged or recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account.

Goodwill and capital reserve

Goodwill arising on consolidation of subsidiaries and
on acquisition of jointly controlled entities and
associates represents the excess of purchase
consideration paid over the fair values ascribed to the
underlying net assets acquired at the date of
acquisition and is eliminated against reserves in the
year of acquisition.

Capital reserve on consolidation represents the excess
of the fair values ascribed to the acquired underlying
net assets of subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities
or associates at the date of acquisition over the
purchase consideration, and is credited to reserves.

Upon the disposal of subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities or associates, the relevant portion of
attributable goodwill previously eliminated against
reserves or capital reserve credited to reserves is
written back and included in the calculation of the
gain or loss on disposal of the investment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2001
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company,
directly or indirectly, controls more than half of its
voting power or issued share capital or controls the
composition of its board of directors.

Interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost unless, in
the opinion of the directors, there have been
diminutions in values, other than those considered to
be temporary in nature, when they are written down
to values determined by the directors. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividends received and receivable.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture which
involves the establishment of a corporation,
partnership or other entity in which each venturer has
an interest. The jointly controlled entity operates in
the same way as other enterprises, except that a
contractual arrangement between the venturers
establishes joint control over the economic activity of
the entity.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of jointly controlled entities is included in
the consolidated profit and loss account and
consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group's
investments in jointly controlled entities are stated in
the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any provisions for diminutions in values, other
than those considered to be temporary in nature,

deemed necessary by the directors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Associates

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly controlled entity, in which the Group has a
long term interest of not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
profit and loss account and consolidated reserves,
respectively. The Group’s interests in associates are
stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any provisions for diminutions in
values, other than those considered to be temporary
in nature, deemed necessary by the directors.

The results of associates are included in the
Company’s profit and loss account to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The interests in
associates are stated in the Company’s balance sheet
at cost, less any provisions for diminutions in values,
other than those considered to be temporary in
nature, deemed necessary by the directors.

Joint venture companies

Joint venture companies comprise companies
operating, directly or indirectly, as independent
business entities. The joint venture agreements
between the venturers stipulate the capital
contributions of the joint venture parties, the
duration of the joint venture and the basis on which
assets are to be realised upon its dissolution. The
profits and losses from operations and any
distribution of surplus assets are shared by the
venturers either in proportion to their respective
capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms
of the joint venture agreements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Joint venture companies (continued)

A joint venture company is treated as:

(i) a subsidiary, if the Group has control over the
joint venture company; or

(i1) a jointly controlled entity, if neither the Group
nor its joint venture partners is in a position to
exercise unilateral control over the economic
activity of the joint venture company; or

(iii) an associate, if the Group holds between 20% and
50% of the joint venture company’s registered
capital for the long term and does not have joint
control, but is in a position to exercise significant
influence over its management; or

(iv) a long term investment, if the Group holds less
than 20% of the joint venture company’s
registered capital for the long term.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation. The cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after the fixed assets have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the profit and loss account in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the
fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

Changes in values of fixed assets are dealt with as
movements in the revaluation reserve. If the total of
this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is
charged to the profit and loss account. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the
profit and loss account to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset,
the relevant portion of the revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuation is transferred to
retained earnings as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each asset over its estimated
useful life, after taking into account its estimated
residual value, if any. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land Over the lease terms
Buildings 2%-5%
Leasehold improvements 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%-30%
Motor vehicles 20%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset recognised in the profit and loss account is the
difference between the net proceeds on disposal and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

The carrying amounts of fixed assets are reviewed
periodically in order to assess whether their
recoverable amounts have declined below their
carrying amounts. Where, in the opinion of the
directors, the recoverable amounts of fixed assets
have declined below their carrying amounts,
provisions are made to write down the carrying
amounts of such assets to their estimated recoverable
amounts. Recoverable amounts are not determined
using discounted cash flows. Reductions of carrying
amounts are charged to the profit and loss account,
except to the extent that they reverse previous
revaluation surpluses in respect of the same items,
when they are charged to the revaluation reserve.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Rentals applicable
to such operating leases are charged or credited to
the profit and loss account on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Long term investments

Long term investments are investments in listed and
unlisted equity securities intended to be held on a
long term basis.

Long term investments are stated at cost less
provisions for any impairments in values, other than
those considered to be temporary in nature, deemed
necessary by the directors, on an individual
investment basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2001
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Short term investments

Short term investments are investments in equity and
debt securities held for trading purposes and are
stated at their fair values on the basis of their quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date, on an
individual investment basis. The gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of a security are
credited or charged to the profit and loss account for
the period in which they arise.

Other investments

Other investments represent club memberships which
are intended to be held for long term purposes. They
are stated at cost less any provisions for diminutions
in values, other than those considered to be
temporary in nature, deemed necessary by the

directors, on an individual investment basis.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost, comprising land, construction and borrowing
costs where appropriate, and net realisable value.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis or weighted average basis, where
appropriate and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all significant timing differences to the extent it is
probable that the Lliability will crystallise in the
foreseeable future. A deferred tax asset is not
recognised until its realisation is assured beyond
reasonable doubt.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the
applicable rates of exchange ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
translated at the applicable rates of exchange ruling
at that date. Exchange differences are dealt with in
the profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
applicable rates of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date. The resulting translation differences are
included in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss
account in the period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes in Hong Kong and overseas for those
employees who are eligible and have elected to
participate in the schemes. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the participating employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the profit and loss
account as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the schemes. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds. When an employee
leaves the Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted ORSO
retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong or other
retirement benefit schemes in overseas prior to his/
her interest in the Group’s employer contributions
vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by
the Group may be reduced by the relevant amount of
forfeited contributions. In respect of the Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme, the Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the scheme.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2001
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(b)

(c)

rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;

interest income, on a time proportion basis
taking into account the principal outstanding
and the effective interest rate applicable;

dividends, when the shareholders” right to
receive payment is established;

circulation income, when the newspapers are
delivered;

advertising income, when the advertisements are
published or broadcasted;

from the rendering of services, when the services
are rendered; and

revenue and profit from sale of properties, upon
the execution of the formal sale and purchase
agreement.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has

the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other

party or exercise significant influence over the other

party in making financial and operating decisions.

Parties are also considered to be related if they are

subject to common control or common significant

influence. Related parties may be individuals or
corporate entities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash equivalents represent short term
highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
were within three months of maturity when acquired,
less advances from banks repayable within three
months from the date of the advance. For the purpose
of balance sheet classification, cash equivalents
represent assets similar in nature to cash, which are
not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2001
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TURNOVER AND REVENUE 3. EXERWE
Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods EEERFACEERMREEREZITN
sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts; CERESEH DREREZBETHRAFE -
circulation income, after allowances for returns; net ERESTHMzEBEWANFE - FRMER
advertising income, after trade discounts; the value of Bz EBENLNEBWREK ZHEHS WA LR
services rendered; and gross rental income received B o
and receivable during the year.
Revenue from the following activities has been INTEB 2 WEmEFTALERENA - HhR
included in turnover. Revenue arising from other TR W R IR T T 4R B o
sources is disclosed in note 4 to the financial
statements.
2001 2000
—BE2-F _ZTTETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAET
Sales of photographic products $HE R B M 272,100 577,365
Sales of electronic products HEEFESD 2,498 19,715
Newspapers: BRE
circulation income BITHA 21,823 —
advertising income BEElA 96,314 —
Rendering of printing services 2 4 B0l AR 75 72,287 —
Radio broadcasting advertising income BEEEBESHBA 2,082 —
Sales of properties HEWE 1,674 —
Gross rental income e WAL 1,266 —
Others HA 15,638 —
Turnover - 485,682 597,080
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31 March 2001

4. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 4, REXBEE
The Group’s loss from operating activities is arrived at REE K EEBEED R -
after charging:
2001 2000
—EE-F —ZTTTHF
HK$'000 HK$000
TERT FAET
Amortisation of agency rights RIBRE# Y — 875
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEE S
Current year KEE 1,091 462
Underprovision in prior year FTEEBRETR 280 128
1,371 590
Depreciation e 9,413 1,675
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBRTEERIE 4,587 11
Operating leases rentals THERZKLEHERS
in respect of:
Land and buildings T REF 4,526 164
Other equipment H R 301 —
4,827 164
Staff costs (including directors’ 8 T A
remuneration — note 7) (BREEZME — WiE?
Wages and salaries TERS® 107,349 18,716
Retirement benefit scheme RKAR AT 850
contributions 4,488 475
Less: Forfeited contributions o OR Mz R (1,728) (87)
Net retirement benefit RORAE B 5T 8 BOH 5
scheme contributions 2,760 388

Total staff costs BT A% 110,109 19,104




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2001

REELE:

LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (continued) 4.

The Group’s loss from operating activities is arrived at

after charging: (continued)

Revaluation deficit on land and
buildings

Exchange losses, net

Loss on changes in fair value of
short term investments, net

Provisions for bad and doubtful debts

Provision for loss on disposal of
fixed assets

Loss on disposal of an associate

Provision for diminution in value
of interest in a jointly
controlled entity

Provisions for diminutions in values
of interests in associates

REXBER (@)

2001

%%

T R BT Y E A
E R BB EE
EHREAREED
FiEEE
R
HEE T EERERE

& — S QA &R
R—HEHRZEHREZ
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N RN
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HK$'000

FTERT

1,726

662

35,226
540

10,657

651

1,360

701

AEEZREXBHREME - (#)

2000
—EEEF
HK$'000
FE&T

3,281

6,656

6,123
48,939

At 31 March 2001, forfeited contributions available to
the Group to reduce its contributions to retirement
benefit schemes in future years amounted to
approximately HK$698,000 (2000: HK$40,000).
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31 March 2001

4. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (continued) 4, REEBER (&)
The Group’s loss from operating activities is arrived at AEEKEEBERDFA

after crediting:

2001 2000
—ET-F CZTTITF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
Interest income FEWKA 32,903 4,872
Dividend income from an unlisted Ky —EELTRE
investment 2 IR B WA 225 —
Dividend income from listed REEmIREZREBA
investments 352 2,236
Gross rental income e WAL 1,582 —
Less: outgoings o B (408) —
Net rental income e WA FE 1,174 —
Gain on disposal of short term HERHIEE 2 e 38
investments, net 4,240 12,225
5. FINANCE COSTS 5. BERE
2001 2000
—EE-F CZTTTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAET
Interest expenses on: THER 2MERX :
Bank borrowings wholly ARTFERNTHEEZ
repayable within five years RITEE 266 1,207
Other borrowings wholly ERTFERNBHEEZ
repayable within five years HiEE — 912

266 2,119
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6. PROVISION AGAINST A DEPOSIT TO ACQUIRE AN
INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

During the year ended 31 March 2000, a full provision
of HK$14,000,000 was made in respect of a deposit
paid by the Group through an agent for the
acquisition of a joint venture in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). Based on a legal opinion, the
directors consider that the likelihood to recover the
deposit paid is remote and a full provision was made
against the deposit paid.

6.

W -—BeECXERZTERE

RBE-_ZETEE=-A=+—HILtEE -
REERBB—ZREBAEFEARLMN
B ([ WEn—MaghEmAa
#IE] 14,000,000 T 1E H 28U E © BIE
—HERER  EERAWNEZETEN
MEeEPT BB ZEEINNTSE
2B o
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7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7. EEME
Directors’ remuneration, disclosed pursuant to the BEEBBAXSMERARES LTR
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock I (TEMAA]) RARHEHIF1611EE =
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) ZEEMENT :
and Section 161 of the Companies Ordinance, is as
follows:
2001 2000
—EE-F —ZTITETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FET
Fees: we
Executive directors WITES 19 1,280
Non-executive directors FEHITES 83 80
Independent non-executive BUERITES
directors 173 160
275 1,520
Other emoluments to executive NyarmEEz2EMME
directors:
Salaries and other benefits T EMERN 11,595 5,798
Retirement benefit scheme RIREFIGT 8
contributions 291 176
11,886 5,974
Other emoluments to an independent NTEIIERTES
non-executive director: 2 BB S
Salaries and other benefits T MEMER 239 —

Total remuneration B & 48 B8 12,400 7,494




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BY 7 3R R M &
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7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 7. EEME (&)

The remuneration of the directors fell within the EEMENT TS5
following bands:

Number of directors
EEAY

2001 2000

—EE-H5 —_ZTTTF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ —1,000,000/% 7T 13 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000 7T — 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T _ 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T — 3,000,000/5 7T 1 —
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001/ 7T — 4,000,000/% 7T 1 —
There was no arrangement under which a director REENEETEBIT L AMENRE
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during WERESEMAE -

the year.

No value is included in the directors’ remuneration in HRARAIRG c BRERSZ AIH2E 2
respect of share options granted because, in the TE WEEEEEERTHERE 2ER
absence of a readily available market value for the ZEE Bt E=MaP L& AR
options on the Company’s shares, the directors are KEREZEMEER -

unable to arrive at an accurate assessment of the

value of the options granted.

Details of the options granted to the directors during RAFEARTEEZEREZFE &
the year are set out in the section “Directors’ rights to MREBENEEFTERE[EZHERN 2

acquire shares” in the Report of the Directors on pages R —E o
38 to 39.
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8.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8. HUBSHEER
The five highest paid employees during the year REEAN - huGaHEERRNIES
included four (2000: Four) directors, details of whose (ZZZTZF : W) - EXMF7EHM R
remuneration are set out in note 7 above. The details EHEHB - BT UERaFFEE (=
of the remuneration of the remaining one (2000: One) ZEEF ) zBEeFBOT
highest paid, non-director employee are as follows:
2001 2000
—®®-5 _—TTETH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Salaries and other benefits e RkEMBH 1,048 576
No value is included in the remuneration of the HRARRARG 2 BRIERZ IH2E 2
highest paid, non-director employee in respect of TE BREEFEEERTEREZER
3,500,000 share options granted during the year B2EE At To#HEEEEE 2
because, in the absence of a readily available market PRI BEBAAZUEEEFANERZ
value for the options on the Company’s shares, the 3,500,00017 &l 4 2 (B 1E -

directors are unable to arrive at an accurate
assessment of the value of the options granted.
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10.

TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16% (2000: 16%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the

Bi 1R

ERENEBNDRRNFERBBE £ 2 M5
JERBUEF] - A16% (ZFZZTF 1 16%) 1
REE RNEMBEREE Z ERFEH 2
BIE - DIEEEEEBEE ZER 2B
E  WIEREHWRITEN - 28 REHF

e

Group operates, based on existing legislation, =
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
2001 2000
—EE-F _"ZTTTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Group: NEH -
The People’s Republic of China: HREARAR
Hong Kong B 425 2,175
Elsewhere H o B Wi [@ 20 —
Elsewhere H b 7y 14,583 —
Overprovision in prior years BITFEBERE (279) (7)
Deferred tax — note 26 RIETIE — M5E26 867 —
15,616 2,168
Share of tax attributable to: e T -
Jointly controlled entities HEEZEHIR A (1,258) —
Tax charge for the year REEBEZ S 14,358 2,168

NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

10. RREGBEXEBBEFSE

The net loss attributable to shareholders dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company is
HK$87,614,000 (2000: HK$101,236,000).

The Group’s share of aggregate profits less losses
retained by its jointly controlled entities and
associates for the year amounted to a loss of
HK$4,054,000 (2000: Nil) and a loss of HK$6,202,000
(2000: HK$2,494,000), respectively.

RARNBHBEREPEEZRREMLB S
¥ E 18 %5 587,614,0008 T (ZEEE
£ : 101,236,000/ 7T,) °

ANEL BN F T e MG B A LR A B R B
ERAIRBzZANBER » 258/
4,054,0008 T2 EIE(ZEETF : T)R
6,202,000 T 2 BB (Z T T LT F -
2,494,00078 JT) °
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11.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on
the net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders for the year of HK$94,310,000 (2000:
HK$92,357,000) and the weighted average of
1,049,351,298 (2000: 447,494,936) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

The diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March
2001 has not been presented as there was no dilutive
effect on the basic loss per share. The conversion of
the preference shares would have anti-dilutive effect
on the basic loss per share, and the outstanding share
options of the Company did not have a dilutive effect.

For the year ended 31 March 2000, no diluted loss per
share was presented as the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding warrants and share options would have
had an anti-dilutive effect.

11.

BRER

BREARNEBNEANFERIEMNA B
T B 18 % 58 94,310,000/ 7T (Z BT T4 ¢
92,357,000 ) R AFEARND EHTEBR
2 INHE T 15 801,049,351,2080% (T EE
5 447,494,9360%) 5T E o

HRBE_TZE-—F=A=+—HILFE
RHZFEZBREEER - BB K
BHEREABEAEREGYE  MA
RAZHARTEBRBLTAEELE -

BE_TTTF=-_A=+—HILFE ' H
RITEE AR R B2 8 R AT 0 R A A 7F N i B
EEERBERE  RUAEZ27SE
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12. FIXED ASSETS 12. B EEE
Furniture,
Land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total
i HE HBH-%E
RETF NEEE SES ] RE CEil
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TER
Group rEE
Cost or valuation: ﬁﬁiméﬂfﬂ
At 1 April 2000 :ngi 53,900 730 4,278 1,232 60,140
MA—A
Additions NE 21 2,664 23,699 1,021 27,405
Acquisitions of subsidiaries g 100= N 398,858 - 559,133 - 957,991
Disposals HE — (578) (169,133) (732) (170,443)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RANEAR — — (627) (499) (1,126)
Deficit on revaluation BhEH (2,200) — — — (2,200)
Provision for loss on disposal & BEEE (10,657) — — — (10,657)
Exchange realignments ERAE (1,706) — 876 - (830)
At 31 March 2001 R-BE-F 438,216 2,816 418,226 1,022 860,280
=ZA=t+-8
Comprising: 2R
At cost BRAE 397,173 2,816 418,226 1,022 819,237
At 2000 valuation, less B_ZTTFY
provision for fifE - kR
loss on disposal Hj'i}ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ 5,193 - - - 5,193
At 2001 valuation B-EZ-F7{5E 35,850 - - - 35,850
438,216 2,816 418,226 1,022 860,280
Accumulated depreciation: ,\Eﬁﬁg
At 1 April 2000 RZZTEF — 581 3,505 1,219 5,305
MA—A
Provided for the year AEERE 2,228 439 6,542 204 9,413
Acquisitions of subsidiaries g 100= N - - 425,282 - 425,282
Disposals & — (509) (153,298) (719) (154,526)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RANEAR — — (540) (499) (1,039)
Deficit on revaluation BhEH (474) — — — (474)
Exchange realignments ERAE (274) — 667 - 393
At 31 March 2001 R-ZEE-F 1,480 511 282,158 205 284,354
=A=t-8
Net book value: FEEE
At 31 March 2001 R-BE-F 436,736 2,305 136,068 817 575,926
=ZA=t+-8
At 31 March 2000 RZZTLF 53,900 149 773 13 54,835
ZRA=+-H
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12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

12. BIEREE (&)

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and and Motor
buildings  equipment vehicles Total
T &KERE
RETF ES] "E &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FTET FET
Company N
Cost or valuation: AR A E S HE
At 1 April 2000 RZZZTZEFWMA—H 7,600 361 — 7,961
Additions NE — 5,068 521 5,589
Disposals el — (111) — (112)
Deficit on revaluation BB (600) — — (600)
At 31 March 2001 R-ZZEE-F=H=+—H 7,000 5,318 521 12,839
Comprising: B
At cost BXAE — 5,318 521 5,839
At 2001 valuation B_EET-FHE 7,000 — — 7,000
7,000 5,318 521 12,839
Accumulated depreciation:  REHITE :
At 1 April 2000 RZZEZZTFMA—H — 144 — 144
Provided for the year REREEE 152 88 105 345
Disposals & — (55) — (55)
Deficit on revaluation Bt B4 (152) — — (152)
At 31 March 2001 R-ZZEE-F=H=+-—H — 177 105 282
Net book value: AREFE
At 31 March 2001 R-ZEZE-f%=A=+—-H 7,000 5,141 416 12,557
At 31 March 2000 R-_ZEZTF=A=+—H 7,600 217 — 7,817
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REELE:

12. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12. BIE&EE (&)

The land and buildings of the Group included above PR EE T REFRTIHEFH

are held under the following lease terms: A
Hong Kong PRC  Elsewhere Total
5B H Hfthith 5 &5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Freehold KA — — 91,173 91,173
Long term leases REIEE 48,700 1,350 — 50,050
Medium term leases HFHEIFEE 257,700 39,293 — 296,993
306,400 40,643 91,173 438,216

FRARRB 2 LM REFHURELBREA
WARHBEERS -

The land and buildings of the Company included above
are situated in Hong Kong and held under medium
term leases.

AEBETHHWREFRARAZMAAE L
HMEREF HRZZEZE-—F=A=+—8H
HBVEXESARGEMEST  DilR
HARMMERBARBANENRGEE - 255
35,850,000/% JT &% 7,000,000 jT ° A Itk H
W2 AEERARRFEEEGEA D RIL
51,726,000 7L (ZZEZZ F : 3,281,000
BT ) & 448,000 T (Z T T F
436,000/ 70) - D RIEREREF R o

Certain of the land and buildings of the Group and all
of the land and buildings of the Company were revalued
individually at 31 March 2001 by Chung, Chan &
Associates, independent professionally qualified
at HK$35,850,000 and HK$7,000,000,
respectively, on an open market value and existing

valuers,

state basis. The resulting deficits on revaluation
attributable to the Group and the Company of
approximately HK$1,726,000 (2000: HK$3,281,000)
and HK$448,000 (2000: HK$436,000), respectively,
have been charged to the profit and loss account.
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12. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12. BIEEE (&)

Certain of the Group’s land and buildings of
HK$397,173,000 were carried at cost because, in the
opinion of the directors, there is no material
difference between the purchase cost and their market
value at the balance sheet date as these properties
were acquired reasonably close to the balance sheet
date and were stated at their fair values at the date of
acquisition in the Group’s financial statements, based
on professional valuations performed by Jones Lang
LaSalle Limited and Cushman & Wakefield of Asia
Limited, independent professional qualified valuers,
on an open market value and existing state/use basis
at 31 December 2000.

Certain of the Group’s land and buildings situated in
the PRC of HK$5,193,000 were revalued at 31 March
2000 by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$15,850,000 on
an open market value and existing state basis. During
the year ended 31 March 2001, a provision of
HK$10,657,000 was made by the directors with
reference to their sales consideration subsequent to
the balance sheet date.

Had all the land and buildings of the Group and the
Company been carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and provision for loss on disposal, the
carrying values of these properties would have been
stated at approximately HK$444,863,000 (2000:
HK$63,133,000) and HK$8,505,000 (2000:
HK$8,700,000), respectively.

At 31 March 2001, certain Group’s fixed assets with a
net book value of approximately HK$180,000,000
(2000: Nil) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

Further particulars of the Group’s land and buildings
are included on pages 124 to 129 of these financial
statements.

A& E 5 T E(E397,173,000% 7T 2 + 4 %
BFEAAEINER RERBEZSWE
2 AHEAERAREEI  MEWETIR
HRBERMZARBERASENB®
RHPEY  WABLEESERIGEMM
S8 17T % Cushman & Wakefield of Asia
Limited * R —_ZTZETF+-_HA=+—H
ZRAFATMERBER/BBERRETEER
B MEERAZEMEZEERAN
HEENEEACTELIESAESR -

REBEEFTURFAE - E1E5,193,0008 T
Z2IHMEEF BEER_ZTTF=A=
T-—HBEBVEXSERGEMESTIR
HARM™ME LR RENLER15,850,0008
T REBEEZZEZ—F=-A=1+—HIF
ERN EZ2EZ£EAMELERE 1F
10,657,000/ T 2 B -

MAEERANRBMAE T RIEFIHIRK
NEBRFTERLEBERHBIIE - A
ZEYHEZ REBEE D B4 444,863,000
BIL(ZEZEZTF 1 63,133,000 1) &
8,505,000 7T (ZEZE T F : 8,700,000/
TT) °

R-_ZTE—F=ZA=+—H AEEET
B8R @)% {8 49 4 180,000,0008 7L (ZZEEZ
F R EATEE  BEEEMERREHE
BR 2 —WBITHERAEER -

ERAEB M BEFZE SIS
N E 12451298 2 I FERE
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13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13. RMIBAR 2=
Company
¥ /N
2001 2000
—EE-F _—ZTETZHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR - K AE 110,268 110,258
Due from subsidiaries JFE W B JB 2~ =) 5 942,069 287,993
Less: Provisions for diminutions in values & : 1B & & (154,612) (91,910)
897,725 306,341
Due to subsidiaries J& <1 BF B & RISRIA (5,318) (70,222)
892,407 236,119
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- HB AR EHRAEERR - 28K
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. IS E R GRER o
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March R-ZTEE—FZA=+—HZHERAFF
2001 are set out in note 35. BHARMFEIA ©
14. INVESTMENT IN AN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARY 14, A—BRBESHEREEZHE QT
ZHRE
Group and Company
AEERAERDT
2001 2000
—EE-F _—ZTETZHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR - K AE 36,000 36,000
Less: Provisions for diminutions in values & : 1B & & (36,000) (18,000)

— 18,000
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14.

INVESTMENT IN AN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARY
(continued)

The investment represents the cost incurred by the
Company under an agreement completed in January
2000 (the “Agreement”) to acquire a 70% equity
interest in Artland International Limited (“Artland”),
an investment holding company incorporated in Hong
Kong, the sole asset of which is a 50% equity interest
in Sichuan Allday TV Development Co., Ltd. (“Sichuan
Allday”), a Sino-foreign equity joint venture
established in the PRC. As at 31 March 2001 and 31
March 2000, of the total
HK$36,000,000, the Company had paid
HK$18,000,000; the remaining HK$18,000,000 of the
original purchase consideration has been included as a

consideration of

liability in other payables and accruals.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the vendors are
responsible, inter alia, to procure for the appointment
of the Company’s representatives as directors of
Sichuan Allday. However, up to the date of approval of
these financial statements, the vendors have not been
able to honour their obligations under the Agreement,
including significantly the obligations relating to the
appointment of directors representing Artland, and
hence the Company, in Sichuan Allday. As a result, the
Group has been unable either to participate in the
management of its investment, or to obtain any
financial information of Sichuan Allday. Against this
background, the directors consider that in substance
the Group is unable to exercise effective control over
its investment as a whole and, accordingly, have
accounted for Artland as an unconsolidated subsidiary.

During the year, the Group had resumed discussion
with the PRC joint venture partner of Sichuan Allday
to explore any cooperation opportunities, however, up
to the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Group had not been able to obtain the financial
information of Sichuan Allday nor has there been any
progress on the discussion of cooperation.

14.

R—BREEEHEEEZHEAR
ZRE (&)
ZEEEREARARE-—ER-_ZTZD
F-—AxK oz GRImzEl) - WER
HRABBRAT ([£F]) 270% A% =
FREE KA - BE5—HRNEBTMK
VZREERAR  HE—BEAHEE—
MERBK I 2HIIEEEERE — @
NE2XERFEREBR AR ([MIIEX]) 2
50%M At c RZTEE—F=A=+—
BER-ZETETFE=ZF=+—0  THERE
36,000,000 7T F - A A & B X
18,000,000/ 7T + #4 %8 18,000,00078 7T 2 J&R
EEEREDI A BHEMENKIBERER
KRIEH -

N A

B

RIEZE  BEHAEE(BRAMER)
REARRZRREZER/NIEZRZE
FoRM ERUFMBEHRRELEZR
Bl BAMKERBEZHEETREZ
B REEZNERAREN/IIZ2XREZME
REREGHEMRRARF) Z2EE - A
B AERBRESEEAAKREZRAZE
BE  ZRFOIEXOEATBEER -
EIEST EFRASERLAKENR
EEEELHEMREZARTEERE
wiE - ESEEARBIEAHEREEZ
Eap=INCIRlE

REA > AEBERELEND)I|2XEF E
EECERHFIENER  UBREENE
fEE - AT BEEHELTBRERZA
AL NEB{DARESD)I2XNE
MMBEER  MAEGXREEIEITRE
HUSEERE -
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REELE:

14.

INVESTMENT IN AN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARY
(continued)

In view of the significant uncertainty over the
vendors’ ability to fulfill their obligations in respect
of the Group’s investment in Sichuan Allday and the
future

uncertainty regarding

opportunities with the joint venture partner and,

cooperation

hence the Group’s ability to participate in the
management and secure its interest in Sichuan Allday,
the directors consider it is prudent to make a full
provision of HK$36,000,000 against the Group's
interest in Artland.

As extracted from the unaudited management
accounts, the deficiency of assets of Artland as at 31
March 2001 was HK$23,024,000 (2000:
HK$22,891,000) and the Group’s share thereof was
HK$16,117,000 (2000: HK$16,024,000). The post-
acquisition loss of Artland for the year ended 31
March 2001 was HK$133,000 (2000: HK$16,474,000)
and the Group’s share thereof was HK$93,000 (2000:
HK$11,532,000).

No guarantee had been given by the Group to Artland
or its creditors and thus no contingent liability in
respect thereof is considered likely to arise.

14.

R-—BREEEHEEEZHNBLQA
ZRE (&)

ERBHESBETERASEERDT)IZX
ZIWEBEZEAGFEERRME  mMBEB%KRA
ERECERBHEIEZHE D TAMN B
AEBESLEEEEYHERELADIIZ
AZEERETFR RHEEFATERR 3t
AREERIM)I 2K 2 % 1E 136,000,000
T R o

NRECEZEEREHRESNERF  R©
—ZE—F=R=+—H BEZEEER
A B 23,024,000 oL (Z T FT T F
22,891,000 7T) M A S B EL HE R
16,117,000/ 70 (Z =TT 4F © 16,024,000/
) c BEZEE—F=-A=+—HILF
& g 2 W& E1E A133,00008 T (ZF
T T F ¢ 16,474,000 7T) T A £ B FE (G £
R6 /93,0008 70 (ZZEZZF : 11,532,000/
JT) e

MAAEEY EOEEREERAFLE
MER BETEREMEETMRAE

(==
=]

o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BY 7 3R %‘? B =
EE 1 ) ]

31 March 2001

15. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 15. REAFZES AT 2 ER

Group

rEHE
2001 2000
—e®-F -—TTTH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Share of net assets BLHEEFE 165,100 —
Due from jointly controlled entities JE W FE B 3% i A R RIE 414,739 —

Less: Provisions against amounts due W RN RIE S A A

from jointly controlled entities B2 R (325,541) —
89,198 —
254,298 —
Due to jointly controlled entities JE A5 FX [ 42 Il X B 5K IR (8,361) —
245,937 —

Except for an amount of HK$65,295,000 due to a
jointly controlled entity which is unsecured, interest-
free, repayable on or before 7 September 2001 and,
accordingly, has been included in current liabilities,
the remaining balances with the jointly controlled
entities have no fixed terms of repayment.

ERTHRIEHIARRIER - BT —2R%
65,295,000 7T « AR ZTE—FNHLEH
SCARTE R 2 M2 SRIB (BEIAR

BE) N - EEREHIQF 2B GBI E
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REELE:

15.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 15.

(continued)

Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entities,
which are held indirectly through subsidiaries, are as

follows:

Name

=X

Beelink Information
Technology Co.,
Ltd.

T BRI
BRAF

Premier Printing
Group Limited*

H Rz RN & B
BRAF*

Sing Tao Daily
Limited

Sing Tao Newspapers
(Canada 1988)
Limited

Singdeer Joint
Venture*

Business
structure

ES

Corporate
= 3

Corporate
=3

Corporate
= 3

Corporate
= 3

Unincorporated
FEFE A 2

* not audited by Ernst & Young

ZEEMT :

Percentage of

Place of equity

incorporation/ attributable

registration to the Group

and operations 2001 2000
KEBEERAE

AL B

BFRREEwY —FF-F —_TTITF

People’s Republic 40 —
of China
hEARKM

Hong Kong 37 —
BB

Canada 19 —
mEx

Canada
mEx

Canada 37 —
mEx

REABEH QT 2B (&)

MEARMESA T EHRES QA

Principal activities

TEXK

Provision of
technical support
and consulting
services for internet
service providers

REBAEREHERS
R RS E R
i 77 AR 15

Printing
Nl

Newspaper
publishing
wEET

Newspaper
production

BERNE

Hotel operations
B JE 4

* WA RKER A EBIER
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15. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 15. REFES AT 2 EE (8)
(continued)
The above table lists the jointly controlled entities of EERA - LRIWEZHBEZESHIAA - x
the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, EXVEREERNFEZEBARAEERTF
principally affected the results of the year or formed a BEZFEERND  -EFTRR/FAERF
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To HtEFAZEH AR ZFEETREBRRIT
give details of other jointly controlled entities would, Ko

in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. REEE QT 2
Group Company
*EH LN
2001 2000 2001 2000

—2¥-F -“TITF -¥R-F ~TTTH
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000

FH&T FHET FET THET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LM - K AE — — 10,729 10,729
Less: Provisions for B ORERE
diminutions
in values — — (10,559) (4,480)
— — 170 6,249
Share of net assets EREEFE 478 4,993 — —
Due from associates JFE W & R B R 21,358 1,867 —_ —
Less: Provisions for o U R A
amounts due SR A
from associates (11,137) — — —
10,699 6,860 170 6,249
Due to associates JEE A< Bt 2 X B SRR (499) — (499) —
10,200 6,860 (329) 6,249
The balances with associates are unsecured, interest- HEERNR s EAZEBRBERE 2B K

free and have no fixed terms of repayment. I 4R [ FE B SRR o
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16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the principal associates are

Business

Name structure
=g EF Y
Tianjin Jinke Corporate

Electronics Industry 1%

Co., Ltd.#
RERMEFIE

BRAF]
Dragon Fly Assets Corporate

Limited* =3

*  Held indirectly through a subsidiary
#  Not audited by Ernst & Young

as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

MR
BRREEHEH

People’s Republic
of China
REARKNE

British Virgin
Islands/
Hong Kong
RBRAES/
HE

The above table lists the associates of the Group

which,

in the opinion of the directors,

principally

affected the results of the year or formed a

substantial portion of the net assets of t
give details of other associates would, in
of the directors,
length.

he Group. To
the opinion

result in particulars of excessive

16. REERNR 2 #HE (&)

b M
SN

TE Al ZFIBWT

Percentage of

equity
attributable
to the Group
2001 2000 Principal activities
TEBEMLRE
ERa
—ERE-F —TTTF TEEK
49 49  Manufacturing
and sale of
communication
and electronic
products
BlE N HE R
BT Em
37 — Investment
holding
BEERKR

* m-REARRERE
¢ W d R KA RN E TS T E %

EE%’ $%l$¢f2¥i*'

C ERIHZ ANEEH S QE]
BWENS

BFEEZTEANED -  EERAFA
REFEMBERRZHBCREBRART
E o]
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17. INVESTMENTS 17. RE
Long term investments, at cost RERE  ERAKE
Group Company
E ARF
2001 2000 2001 2000
“EE-F _—_TTITHF ZBE-HF _—_ITTTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

FTER TR FTER TR

Listed equity investments: M RAIEE :

Hong Kong B 3,279 63,022 — —
Elsewhere H i 7y 872 — —_ —
4,151 63,022 —_ _

Unlisted equity FETRAKRE
investments 4,999 — — —
Unlisted debt securities  JE FFEHKE A 4,320 — — —
13,470 63,022 —_ _

Market value of listed R EME

investments 3,469 108,048 — —
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17.

18.

INVESTMENTS (continued) 17. RE&E (&)
Short term investments, at fair value EHRE BAAEE
Group Company
AKEE b NGNS
2001 2000 2001 2000
—EE—F —ZEFTZT —EE—F —ZEFTZT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET
Listed equity investments: TR AIZE -
Hong Kong BB 105,469 8,180 245 720
Elsewhere H i 7y — 1,678 — —
105,469 9,858 245 720
Unlisted equity FELEMBRAKRE
investments — 1,000 — —
Unlisted debt investments 3 EMEBHEHFIEE 27,264 — — —
132,733 10,858 245 720
Market value of listed EHEREME
investments 101,306 9,858 245 720
INVENTORIES 18. F7&
Group
KEH
2001 2000
—EE-F —ZTETTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHE T
Raw materials R #1 K 58,033 —
Work in progress & m 12,623 —
Finished goods LR M 1,633 —
Inventories held for resale FEEEZGFE 37,287 52,373
109,576 52,373
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18. INVENTORIES (continued) 18. #& (&)
The carrying amount of inventories at net realisable P BERAERFEIRIEERE
value included in the above is HK$8,766,000 (2000: B & 8,766,000 7T (= T ZT &E F
HK$14,044,000). 14,044,000/ 7T) ©

19. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 19. EWERR
The Group allows an average credit period of 14 to 90 REBEBGBTESEPFHUEIORLEE
days to its trade customers. The aged analysis of By o EWRRFR 2 BREE AT IR S -

accounts receivable is as follows:

Group
rEHE
2001 2000
=225 _ZTETTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAET
Ageing: ARER -
Current to 30 days ENEAZ= 30K 64,716 38,291
31 - 60 days 31E 60K 51,483 3,391
61 - 90 days 615 90K 52,024 1,636
91 - 120 days 91FE 120K 28,970 535
Over 120 days 120K PA 1= 28,581 1,970
225,774 45,823
Less: Provisions for bad B RIBREE
and doubtful debts (12,092) (2,000)
213,682 43,823
20. PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS 20 EEREHER
The pledged time deposits were used to secure general EERTHERRBEREBRER ZRTT

banking facilities granted to the Group. HRAE 2 EWR -
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REELE:

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. RERKREEEER
Group Company
rEE P NN]
2001 2000 2001 2000
—BE-F _TITTHF ZBE-F _TZTEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET FER FAET
Cash and bank balances Be NIRRT 178,680 14,745 454 762
Time deposits TE B 1F 5K 101,216 238,094 1,217 134,202
279,896 252,839 1,671 134,964
22. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE 22. ENEBRIRARERE
The aged analysis of accounts payable is as follows: JERBRAR Z BREe AT a0 T
Group
rEHE
2001 2000
—BE-F _ZTTETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Ageing: ARER -

Current to 30 days ENEiZ 30K 50,870 73,002
31 - 60 days 312 60K 14,439 5,333
61 - 90 days 61 90K 14,438 5,879
91 - 120 days 91FE 120K 11,946 943
Over 120 days 120K PA == 10,639 1,923
102,332 87,080

Included in the balance is HK$12,879,000 (2000: Nil)
due to a jointly controlled entity arising from normal

N HESRBEREEEESESRST o EBA—
fE) B 452 %l A 8] 2 5078 12,879,000% 7T (=

trading activities. ZETF M) o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2001

W REH

23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

Group

2001 2000
—RE-F _TTEF
HK$'000
i Fix

Interest-bearing bank
borrowings comprise:

M ERTTIEE R :

23. MERITHEE

Company

ARTF
2001 2000
—EE-F _—_TTEHF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TAETT

Bank mortgage loan RITIRIBE X 4,858 — 4,858
Bank overdrafts RITHE X 741 — 286
5,599 — 5,144
Analysed as: pak =
Secured BHEA 4,858 — 4,858
Unsecured i 741 — 286
5,599 — 5,144
The bank borrowings are AR T 5| HiFE(EE ~
repayable as follows: RITEE -
Within one year or on —F RS B A
demand 1,610 — 1,155
More than one year, —FRETBBMWE
but not exceeding
two years 954 — 954
More than two years, MERETBBARF
but not exceeding
five years 3,035 — 3,035
5,599 —_ 5,144
Less: Amount due within & : B ARBAGEZ
one year classified —F N HA
as current liabilities EERE (1,610) — (1,155)
Amount due after one year —F &R HEE 2 KA 3,989 — 3,989
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24. LONG TERM OTHER PAYABLES 24, Htt RHIEMN IR
The balance is payable to a joint venture partner of a HERAEMNT —HHERZEH AR & ERE
jointly controlled entity, the balance is unsecured, B RBEAEER - RERER-ZE
interest-free and repayable on or before 7 December 2005. AEFTZAEHAIFIERE -
25. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS 25. RBRBEEE
Group
rEHE
2001 2000
—EE-F _—ZTZTZT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wk — B A 12,029 —
Payments during the year FAXZH (351) —
Exchange realignment E R (62) —
Balance at 31 March R=ZA=+—Bz&%& 11,616 —
This principally represented provisions made for long NEFZERBERBERBENEVBHAE
service payments for eligible employees in accordance BREBFHZRARESBE - 2BHB
with Part VB of the Employment Ordinance of Hong AIAMBRAEBRRENGE R 2 ELHE
Kong. The provision may be reduced by any part of B &6 19 FIE o
such payments that would be met out of the Group’s
retirement benefit schemes.
26. DEFERRED TAX 26. EEHIE
Group
rEHE
2001 2000
—EE-F _"ZTTTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wk — B A 8,136 —
Charge for the year — note 9 FAZH — M9 867 —
Exchange realignment EHFHE 2 —

Balance at 31 March R=ZA=+—Bz&%& 9,005 —
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 26. EEBLE (8)

The principal components of the Group’s provision for

AEBERERBREFB T EEE - BRK

deferred tax, and the net deferred tax asset not RAPBRERERZECREELEEFEN

recognised in the financial statements are as follows: N

Provided Not provided
[=F: § REE
2001 2000 2001 2000
—EE-F _—_ZTITTHF —BF-F —TTETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT FER FAT
Accelerated depreciation JIRITE R

allowances 7,843 — 8,799 —
Tax losses 5B R — — (32,035) (18,578)
Others Hb 1,162 — (2,951) —
9,005 —  (26,187)  (18,578)

No provision has been made for taxes which would
arise on the remittance to Hong Kong of retained
profits of overseas companies as it is not anticipated
that these amounts will be remitted in the near
future.

The potential tax benefits attributable to tax losses of
certain subsidiaries have not been recognised as they
are not expected to be utilised in the foreseeable
future.

The revaluations of the Group’s land and buildings do
not constitute timing differences and, consequently,
the amount of potential deferred tax thereon has not
been quantified.

MREREII R 2B EMNER AT
SEAEEE AUMAYESZERBETER
BRI EEZRBAELEE -

HRETHEBRAZREEREEELER
BHaBEMEA RRASEE - FHibd
H LU HERR -

EfRAEEZ LM REFTE NEXEZE
BB EERMEEETEH A ZHE -
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
31 March 31 March
2001 2000
—ET-F —ZTTITHF
=ZA=+—-8B =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Authorised: EERA
4,708,513,092 (2000: 900,000,000) 4,708,513,092/k (ZZEZEF
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 900,000,000(% ) & A% E (& 470,851 90,000
0.1078 7T 2 & i Ak
1,291,486,908 (2000: Nil) 5% 1,291,486,9088 (Z T T LT F :
redeemable cumulative convertible /) BRME10E T 2
preference shares of HK$0.10 each 5% 2 15 7] f& 5] 7] 42 129,149 —
BEk
600,000 90,000
Issued and fully paid: EEFTRYERA
1,338,119,273 (2000: 498,587,574) 1,338,119,273 (Z T LT F
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 498,587,5740%) B K E & 133,812 49,859
0.10/8 7T 2 & i Ak
Issued and partly paid: E#ETRE G ERA -
1,291,486,908 (2000: Nil) 5% 1,291,486,908f% (— T T =
redeemable cumulative convertible ) BREE.108 T 2
preference shares of HK$0.10 each 5%RTE 0] B E 82,500 —
ATERE SR
216,312 49,859
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 27. R& (&)

A summary of the movements in the share capital of ATRAERBTBREARFAZEEHHE -
the Company during the year is as follows:

(a) Authorised share capital (@) EERE
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 17 BE-—ER-_ZETFLATLAB
July 2000, the authorised share capital of the BOEBREAR  ARAIHELR
Company was increased from 900,000,000 to 3,808,513,092% & IR E {H0.10/8 7T 2
6,000,000,000 by the creation of 3,808,513,092 A% 0 121,291,486,908% =% H B
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each and 0108 Tz RTEF B O Al E iR E 5
1,291,486,908 redeemable cumulative & - 175 T AR 7K #3.900,000,0004% & AN
convertible preference shares of HK$0.10 each. %6,000,000,000A% °

(b) Ordinary shares (b) EBR

Number of  Issued and
Notes  ordinary shares fully paid

B 81T
B 5E ZERH™E RER
HK$'000
FHET
As at 1 April 2000 R-ZZTEEZETEFMH—A 498,587,574 49,859
Issue of new shares to M Luckman Trading
Luckman Trading Limited Limited ([ Luckman])
(“Luckman”) BATH @) 607,396,000 60,740
Issue of new shares to Ontario A% KBS & KT
Municipal Employees EERKES
Retirement System BATHAX (i1) 27,852,389 2,785
Exercise of options 17 {8 B P e (i) 275,000 27
Exercise of warrants 1T R 3B (iv) 204,008,310 20,401
As at 31 March 2001 RZBEE—F=ZA=+—H 1,338,119,273 133,812
(i) 607,396,000 shares of HK$0.10 each were (i)  607,396,000A% & fi% M 5 0.107%
issued for cash at a subscription price of TZBRHERREEETRK
HK$0.6388 per share for a total cash 0.6388 B LA £ 317 - KKk
consideration, before expenses, of X 2 81K 2R EAB

HK$388,005,000. 388,005,0007% JT °




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2001

REELE:

27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
(b) Ordinary shares (continued)

(i) 27,852,389 shares of HK$0.10 each were
issued for cash at a subscription price of
HK$2.13 per share for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of
HK$59,326,000.

(i) The subscription rights attaching to
275,000 share options were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$0.83 per share,
resulting in the issue of 275,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of
HK$228,000.

(iv) The subscription rights attaching to
204,008,310 warrants were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$0.40 per share,
resulting in the issue of 204,008,310 shares
of HK$0.10 each for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of
HK$81,603,000.

Details of movements in the Company’s ordinary
share capital subsequent to the balance sheet
date are set out in note 36(b) to the financial
statements.

27. BRAK (&)
(b) ZBER (&)

(i) 27,852,389/ & AR [ {H0.10/8 7T
2R BEREETR2.138 T
BT KNBRAZ 2
/e REA59,326,000/8 7T °

(iif) 275,00017 & A% # I B 2 2 08 1
FRRABESTRETITHE
% » HE17275,0000% F 1% EE
0,108 T Zfn - RINBRFAX 2
4230 5 R {8 5228,000% 7T °

(iv) 204,008,310 R EF W A 2
RIBEAEILZAREETR.40ETT
1T 1% - 3577 204,008,3108%
BREE.10B T2 ’kHm + RN
RRAXTcB8E2RER
81,603,000/ T °

EMEERRADAERRAZ S
1 B B 5 9 % Y 3E36(b) ©
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(c) Preference shares

27. BAK (&)
(c) BER

Number of  Issued and
preference shares  partly paid

ERTR

BERH™E HoHME

HK$'000

FET

As at 1 April 2000 RZZEZZTFMA—A — —
Issue of new shares partly paid BATE D BB IR Y H AR 1,291,486,908 82,500
As at 31 March 2001 RZEE—F=ZRA=+—H 1,291,486,908 82,500

Pursuant to the relevant subscription agreement
and supplemental amendment thereof,
1,291,486,908 preference shares were issued at a
cash subscription price of HK$0.6388 per share
to Luckman and, at 31 March 2001, such
preference shares were partly paid up as to 10%
of the subscription price, resulting in total cash
consideration received, before expenses, of
HK$82,500,000. The holders of the preference
shares may elect to advance to the Company all
or part of moneys uncalled or unpaid on any
such preference shares. However, the Company is
not permitted to make calls with respect to
amounts unpaid on such partly paid preference
shares.

BEREEH ABHZ R T HE -
1,291,486,908/% B SE IR 2RI & R B
E&N%0.6388E 7L # 1T ¥ Luckman °
AZEE—F=—A=+—H  %FE
ERE BT EREBL0%HRT - K
MERAIABBR cBRERER
82,500,000/8 7T ° B MRFFA AT
BmAQREN 2 E 2 E 0 R R
*iﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁxﬂﬁﬁ TN/

BRZEDNDBERAIOEB LR E
%?ﬁl?fi%lﬂx/ﬂ o
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 27. RA& (&)

(c) Preference shares (continued) (c) BER (&)

The holders of preference shares are entitled to
fixed cumulative preferential dividends at the
rate of 5% per annum provided that the
preference shares have been fully paid up.

The preference shares are convertible into new
ordinary shares of the Company upon being fully
paid up, in the period between 20 July 2000 and
19 July 2002, in the ratio of one new ordinary
share for every preference share. In addition, the
preference shares are redeemable at any time by
their holders for the amount paid up together
with any arrears or accruals of the fixed
dividend on the
preference shares, subject to the provisions of

cumulative preferential

the Companies Act of Bermuda.

Details

preference share capital subsequent to the

of movements in the Company’s

balance sheet date are set out in note 36(b) to
the financial statements.

il 12 ST RIS B A B BUR 18 S BRGR
Al RERIZFXREFENEE R
BELBEE -

R-TEETEFLA-_F+HE-_ZTT -
FLA+NBHHE BEERRBRE
HENEGRELERBERART R
FEMAR L) B AL ER -
o - X ERERTEMECHTRR
T - EERFEE AT R A
B2 #AIE - ERERLET 2 EE
IR EF REMRE o

ARGEHARAAREARAZE
A 15 B B 25 R R M aE36(b) ©
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28. WARRANTS

Balance in issue at 1 April 1999

Exercised during the year:
At the exercise price of

28. RAWRRERE

2000 Warrants

—EEEERARER
Number Value
4= BE
HK$'000
FAET
R—hhAhEmA—RZ 87,085,281 87,085

BB ITRREE &%
RERITE :
TEESRILE T

HK$1.0 per share (3,029,700) (3,030)
At the exercise price of TR EFR0.99% T
HK$0.99 per share (1,846,464) (1,828)
Effect of adjusting the warrant AERABREZTEER
price to HK$0.99 per share FH%0.998 T 2 & 849,047 —
Balance in issue at 31 March 2000 RZZEZZTF=RA=+—H
and 1 April 2000 NZ_ZZEZTFMA—HR
ZEBITRAREREH 83,058,164 82,227
Effect of adjusting the warrant AERABREZTEER
price to HK$0.4 per share BRO4ABTLZFE 122,510,790 —
Exercised during the year RFRITE (204,008,310) (81,603)
Lapsed during the year REFEREK (1,560,644) (624)

At 31 March 2001

R-ZEE-H=ZA=+—H —

Each of the 2000 warrant holders was entitled to
subscribe in cash for one ordinary share of HK$0.10
each in the Company, at any time from the date of
issue up to and including 30 September 2000.

Subsequent to the issue of 635,248,389 ordinary
shares in the Company as set out in notes 27(b)(i)
and (ii) above, the exercise price of the 2000 Warrants

H{E0.108 T2 L@dmM -

BU_SETERRREREAGENE
TRAHME-_ZTTFAA=TRH (BREZ

BH) 2 E@ERA - UBEERBBARF R

a0 b u it sE27(b) () K (i) AT - B TTAR
N 8)635,248,389% i (0 18 - —
REZBZITFEEDLRERRERE B

.
== I 27
ZEER

IX
was adjusted from HK$0.99 per share to HK$0.40 per &% - BER0.99B LHAEE FR0.4075

share, pursuant to the terms of the warrant JC °

instrument.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29. IBIRRESTE

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme
adopted on 14 June 1996, the board of directors of
the Company may, at its discretion, grant options to
eligible employees, including executive directors, of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for
shares in the Company at a price not less than 80% of
the average of the closing prices of the shares on the
Stock Exchange on the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of granting the options or the
nominal value of the shares, whichever is the higher.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the share option
scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time, and the
maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any one executive director
or employee shall not exceed 25% of the maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the share option scheme.

No cash consideration was received by the Company
for the options granted during the year.

During the year, 46,254,000 share options were
granted to five executive directors of the Company
and 18,014,000 share options were granted to certain
employees of the Group. 275,000 share options were
exercised during the year by the employees and
23,473,000 share options lapsed upon the resignation
of directors and employees of the Group.

BIEARRQ RN — AN ENATEBE R
ZHERETE  ARRZEEEBIBMA
RARKEFANBRARIZAEREER (B
BROTES) BTIRBEAQRMRMN ZBR
O REBEATENEREERERLE AR
AIAER S B RG L 2 FHkm
B 280%BMHHEE (RS HEBE) -

BIEERETEAERE T EBREM IR
BHORNHEE e TEBAKRARTK
BB ITARAN10% i AR #5 5% 5T & 7] e M)
A—UHTESHEERE 2 BRETR
BCRMHEE TS BAREBRERT
ZIFTRE R B R R 2 &= R 8
B Z225% °

ARBRFARBURBRELBEREZRS
RE-

FR -ARFRAAUHRTEEREH
46,254,00010 FE I - MAEEE TEEXK
118,014,000/ FE IR - N - BB & 1T
f275,00017 i iz ¥ - i & 23,473,00017 &
KEARAEEC EEREBFEMXE
e
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. B AESHE (&)

At 31 March 2001, the following share options MRZTEZE—F=A=+—0 "  BRIEZ

remained outstanding: BRENT -
Number of share Exercise price
options outstanding per share Exercise period
HARITENBREHE BRITEE TEEHIBR
HK$
& TT
48,298,000 0.8704 24 October 2000 to 23 October 2010
—EETFF+A+NAE T —ZTFE+A-F+=H
3,840,000 2.6000 1 October 1999 to 31 September 2001
— NI NF+A—HBHZ2_EE—FhLA=+—H
2,165,000 0.8300 1 October 1999 to 31 September 2001
— NI NF+A—HBZ2_EE—FhLA=+—H
5,200,000 1.3500 1 January 2001 to 31 December 2002
T F-A-—RAE-_ETE-_F+_-_HF=+—H
12,460,000 0.9184 25 September 2000 to 24 September 2010
—EETEFAA+RHAE T —ZTEFNAA-FTMEA
338,000 0.4256 22 November 2000 to 21 November 2010
—EEEFE+ A+ ZHAE_ZE-EZEFE+—-A=+—H
2,636,000 0.5760 22 December 2000 to 21 December 2010
—EEEFA+ A+ ZHET—ZEHF+=-A=+—H
64,000 0.4272 23 January 2001 to 22 January 2011
—EE - -A-+=ZRAE-_FT——F—HA=+=H
184,000 0.5216 22 March 2001 to 21 March 2011

—EE—F=-A -+ ZHE-ZE——F=A=-+—H

75,185,000

The exercise in full of these outstanding share options
would, under the Company’s present capital structure,
result in the issuance of 75,185,000 additional
ordinary shares in the Company for an aggregate
consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$74,068,000.

RARBIRBEZEREET  BEITEU
ERMATEZHERE  BEBETEIN
75,185,000f% A2 Rl E AR - BREERR
7 X2 A1 4 574,068,00075 7T °

101
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30. RESERVES 30. f#fE
Retained
Exchange profits/
Share  Contributed Capital  fluctuation (accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses) Total
B EEEN/
KRB  BABE  EARE  KDRE (RHER) at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Group by -]
At 1 April 1999 R=AANENA—A 137,223 9,899 13,892 144 76,129 237,287
Exchange realignments ERHE - - - (76) - (76)
Issue of shares BT 205,536 - - - - 205,536
Share issue expenses BIRNHAR (7,482) - - - - (7,482)
Shares repurchased and cancelled B REERG (5,857) - - - - (5,857)
Loss for the year ERBA - - - — (92,357) (92,357)
At 31 March 2000 and 1 April 2000 R -TET4E 329,420 9,899 13,802 68 (16,228) 337,051
A=T-Bk
—ZE24MA-A
Exchange realignments R HE - - - (4,035) - (4,035)
Issue of shares BN 445,209 - - - - 445,200
Share issue expenses BORAEY (13,024) - - - - (13,024)
Write-back on disposal HE-RNERAR
of a subsidiary e - - 5,214 - - 5,214
Goodwill on acquisition of WRE-ALREHATF
a jointly controlled entity EECHE - - (150,921) - - (150,921)
Capital reserve on WEHBLAREZER
acquisitions of subsidiaries B - - 212,827 - - 212,827
Loss for the year FRBE - - - - (94,310) (94,310)
At 31 March 2001 WZBE-%=F=1+-H 761,605 9,899 81,012 (3,967)  (110,538) 738,011
Retained by: BrE:
Company and its subsidiaries RARARANBAF 761,605 9,899 81,012 324 (97,796) 755,044
Jointly controlled entities EEb NG - - - (4,422) (4,054) (8,476)
Associates ﬁ% VN - - - 131 (8,688) (8,557)
At 31 March 2001 WZBE-%=F=1+-H 761,605 9,899 81,012 (3,967)  (110,538) 738,011
Company and its subsidiaries ARARANBAF 329,420 9,899 13,892 68 (13,742) 339,537
Associates kYN - - - - (2,486) (2,486)
At 31 March 2000 RZZETE=A=1—-H 329,420 9,899 13,892 68 (16,228) 337,051
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30. RESERVES (continued) 30. %4 (&)

Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
R 13 % 8 BABREK RitBR Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET THET
Company AT
At 1 April 1999 R—NALANLEMA—A 137,223 104,950 (1,343) 240,830
Issue of shares BT 205,536 — — 205,536
Share issue expenses AT B 2 (7,482) — — (7,482)
Shares repurchased and [ & s 85 AR 9
cancelled (5.857) — — (5.857)
Loss for the year FANERE — — (101,236) (101,236)
At 31 March 2000 and RZZEZTZEF=RA=1+—H
1 April 2000 RZZEEEFMNHA—H 329,420 104,950 (102,579) 331,791
Issue of shares BTG, 445,209 — — 445,209
Share issue expenses BATIRGD X (13,024) — — (13,024)
Loss for the year FAEE — — (87,614) (87,614)
At 31 March 2001 R-EZE—-F=A=+—H 761,605 104,950 (190,193) 676,362

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of shares issued
by Perfect Treasure Holdings (BVI) Limited in
exchange for the aggregate nominal value of the
issued share capital of subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the group reorganisation in 1996.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the same reorganisation, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefore. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), the Company may make
distributions to its members out of contributed surplus
under certain circumstances.

NEE 2B AEBAE Perfect Treasure
Holdings (BVI) Limited B Z{TAX D 2 M
B BREXB-ANASFREEEEAR
RUWEMBARCRITRARBE CERE -

ARBZHBABBRAREBERA-—REEEH
kB zMBRRIZEMAREE B
REMBETZARARMPEAECEZRE - R
BEERE-NAN—FRFEEER) K
RAAEETERT - UMEARGBRRBKRE
EH DK °
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REELE:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of loss from operating

31. ZFERETRERMEE

(a) REXBHRESEXBCRESRY

activities to net cash outflow from operating FHEHIHERR
activities
2001 2000
—EE-F _ZTZTTHF
HK$'000 HK$000
FTERT FHET
Loss from operating activities REXBER (51,362) (55,432)
Interest income A E WA (32,903) (4,872)
Dividend income from an unlisted *E—HEELETEREZ
investment B A (225) —
Dividend income from KEETREZ
listed investments B A (352) (2,236)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts RIZRERE 540 48,939
Loss on changes in fair values of REKREARBEE
short term investments, net B8 F 5 35,226 6,123

Gain on disposal of short term

HERRRE RS FE

investments, net (4,240) —
Revaluation deficit on land and buildings T REFEHBA 1,726 3,281
Provision for diminution in value of RHERZES AR Z

interest in a jointly controlled entity w2 BERE 1,360 —
Provisions for diminutions in values of REERB 2R Z

interests in associates BB B 701 —
Provision for loss on disposal of HEBTEERBERE

fixed assets 10,657 —
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—FHEE R AEIE 651 —
Depreciation e 9,413 1,675
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBRTFTEERIE 4,587 11
Amortisation of agency rights RIBRE — 875
Decrease in inventories FERD 1,852 983
Decrease in short term investments R E R — 2,832
Decrease in properties held for sale RIELEWHERD 8,984 —
Decrease in accounts receivable, FEUER K - TR RUE

prepayments, deposits and Al & K H e Yk kR

other receivables 9,710 68,592
Increase in amount due from a jointly FE U L R Z B A A

controlled entity TR IEIE HN (807) —
Increase in amount due from an associate  J& Y B & 2 B FRIEE N — (1,867)
Decrease in accounts and bills JERTBR AR R R HE - H b &1

payable, other payables and accruals RIE N REET SRR (55,789) (88,121)
Decrease in provision for long service payments & 5 iR 75 & B &5 (351) —
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXxEHTE (3,817) (138)
Net cash outflow from operating activities #& & %% 2 3 & 7 (£ )F 58 (64,439) (19,355)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2001

u B

(continued)

31. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 31. ZFERERERMETE (&)
(b) Acquisitions of subsidiaries (b) WEKBLQA
2001 2000
—EE-F —ZTTTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Net assets acquired: BEEEEE

Fixed assets & E & & 532,709 —

Interests in jointly controlled MR ARz
entities 158,118 —
Interests in associates REtE R Al 2w 10,990 —
Long term investments RHEEE 13,470 —
Other investments Hibhig & 2,353 —
Properties held for sale BIELEWE 43,583 —
Inventories rE 67,191 —

Accounts receivable, prepayments, FEWBR R - AT FRIA -
deposits and other receivables 5] & K A fih fE Y FRIE 256,995 —
Pledged time deposits EHEMETHER 11,855 —
Cash and bank balances BRe RRITHEH 173,146 —

Accounts payable, other JET AR AR - b A
payables and accruals TRIR Ko fE 5T R (222,931) —
Tax payable & A5 B 3K (30,724) —
Provision for long service payments KBRS & B & (12,029) —
Deferred tax i FE T IR (8,136) —
Minority interests DERRE S (255,143) —
741,447 -
Capital reserve arising from REWEE 2 BEARHEE
acquisitions (212,827) —
528,620 —
Satisfied by: XA

Cash Be 528,620 —
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31. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(continued)

(b) Acquisitions of subsidiaries (continued)

Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the acquisitions of

31. FERTRERME (@)

(b) WEEHEAR (4)

WEMB AR ZRE R SEEEA R
FEEBZ N

subsidiaries:
2001 2000
—EE-H5 —_ZTTTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHE T
Cash consideration ReRE (528,620) —
Cash and bank balances acquired B 2 IRe MIRTTE & 173,146 —
(355,474) —

The subsidiaries acquired during the year
contributed HK$5,413,000 to the Group’s net
cash inflow from operating activities, received
HK$5,874,000 in respect of the net returns on
investments and servicing of finance, paid
HK$5,330,000 in respect of tax and utilised
HK$11,250,000 for investing activities.

F AR E AT AR E B K5,413,000
B EEXEBR SR AFE - ]I
5,874,000 L AR HEMEER « X
15,330,000/8 ST B TH LA KR 3% B )& 8 2
11,250,000/ 7T ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BY 7% 3R R M &
T2E 1 A ]
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31. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 31. ZKEBEHRERMET (&)
(continued)
(c) Summary of effects of disposal and (c) HEREI—HHNBARZTEME

reclassification of a subsidiary

2001 2000
—EE-F _"ZTITTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Net assets disposed of: BEHEFEE :
Fixed assets EE & E 87 —
Inventories FE 8,136 —
Accounts receivable, FEYRR X - TERTRRIE
prepayments, deposits and 51 & N H th B W sk IR
other receivables 13,844 —
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTH & 1,783 —
Bank overdrafts RITEX (203) —
Accounts payable, other JERTBRFR - Efth
payables and accruals JE < TR I8 Ko & 5 IR (17,867) —
Net assets disposed of: BEHEFEE 5,780 —
Goodwill realised on disposal &R R A 5,214 —
Reclassification to interests in i RPN ) N
associates, previously 2T EINA
accounted for as a subsidiary R NCIE (1,474) —
Loss on disposal H & B E (4,469) —
5,051 —
Satisfied by: AR
Cash consideration BeRE 5,051 —
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31. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(continued)

(c¢) Summary of effects of disposal and
reclassification of a subsidiary (continued)

Analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash

31. FERTRERME (@)

() HEREJ-EHBLAAZRERE
(#)

HE—BHBARZRE MRS FEEAR

equivalents in respect of the disposal of a MAER 2 AT -
subsidiary:
2001 2000
—EE-F _—ZTZTZT

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Cash consideration BeRE 5,051 —
Cash and bank balances disposed of & &3 & & IRTT4 84 (1,783) —
Bank overdrafts disposed of ERERITEX 203 —
3,471 —

The subsidiary disposed of during the year made
no significant contribution to the Group in
respect of the cash flows, turnover and
consolidated loss after tax and before minority
interests for the year.

FABHEZWMBRARLESAREER
FREZBEESRE  EXBEUARBREER
FHAOBRRERN ZEEENTREME
RERK -
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31. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 31. ZREBERERMET (&)

(continued)

(d) Analysis of changes of financing during the (d) FRARESE DN

year
Share
capital Bank
and share mortgage Minority
premium loan interests
[Ny 52 R 1T >
B 19 % 1B RIBEX PR 3R &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FET
Balance of 1 April 1999 R—NNNF 180,766 5,661 2,272
MA—RZ#&#
Exchange realignment ME 3,38 B — — (62)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary  Z7TE @R ATS FE
shares 212,057 — —
Share issue expenses BT B X (7,482) — —
Repurchase of ordinary shares fE B B X (6,062) — —
Repayment during the year FRNER — (803) —
Share of loss for the year FANEIGEE — — (1,856)
Balance at 31 March 2000 and RZEZETHF
1 April 2000 =A=+—8kK 379,279 4,858 354
—EEEF
MA—RZ#&EH%
Exchange realignment HE 5, 8 B — — 1
Proceeds from issue of ordinary  Z77E @R FTS FE
shares 529,162 — —
Proceeds from issue of preference 271718 5% FT15
shares 82,500 — —
Share issue expenses BT B X (13,024) — —
Repayment during the year FRNER — (4,858) —
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W BE B B A 7 — — 255,143
Share of loss for the year FANEIGEE — — (5,659)
Share of reserves FEAE B — — (1,824)
Balance at 31 March 2001 R-ZBE—F
=ZSA=t+—HBz#&& 977,917 — 248,015
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REELE:

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

At 31 March 2001, the Company had outstanding
corporate guarantees of approximately
HK$123,450,000 (2000: HK$242,200,000) issued
in favour of banks to secure general banking
facilities granted to its subsidiaries. These
subsidiaries had not utilised any of the facilities
as at 31 March 2001 (2000: HK$58,478,000).

A 74.5% owned subsidiary of the Group has
given several guarantees in favour of a bank to
secure 50% of the credit facilities granted to,
and utilised by, a jointly controlled entity. As at
31 March 2001, the Group’s proportionate share
of such utilised credit facilities was
approximately HK$52,642,000.

The Group has an interest in a joint venture
which, until December 1996, owned a property
which was financed in part by a loan secured by
a mortgage on the property. Each joint venturer
is committed to the repayment of its
proportionate share of the liability under the
mortgage and this is reflected in a several
guarantee given by the venturers to the
mortgagee. During 1996, the property was sold
by the mortgagee and the Group has written off
its investment in the joint venture and provided
for its proportionate share of the mortgage
liability under the guarantee. There is a
contingent liability in respect of the remaining
excess mortgage liability of approximately
HK$106 million as at 31 March 2001, in the
event that the Group’s obligations could be
determined to be joint and several, and the
other venturers fail to honour their attributable
portions. The Group has obtained legal advice
which confirmed that such a claim, whilst
possible, is unlikely to succeed.

32.

HREE

(a)

(b)

(c)

RZZEE—F=ZA=+—H  KAQF
HEMBAREEZ —RRITERE
MmAiRTEDLDZAAERLY
123,450,000 70 (= & T T F
242,200,0007% 7C) ° L E B A RI1E
TETE-F=-A=+—BEHNRHA
THRTHERE(ZZZTZTF -
58,478,000 JT) °

—MAEEHB145% 2B ARE
m—ARTEEETER  ERA—
BEREHAFERBEEHANGEE
HRREZ50%ER - R —F=
A=+—8 X&EERZEEHAZ
EEBRAEY  KRHOEELD
52,642,000/ 7T °

REEHE —BEELEIELR - %
TEE-—ANARNF+ZAEE 8
ME - BN REUZENERS
RERZER  FEEHEKEES
RLLPIEEEBIZIBNER - b &K
EAREE R BN ERIZIBERS
R e R—HNATF - FIEABZE
MELE  MAKENEMBEES &
ERZEE - WAKREEIRLLFIE
EZIRBEBIELRE - MEAEHE
ZETEHEEABAERMERNERE M
Hih&E T ReBITE 8 2517 - A
E-ZEE-S=-fA=t+—H#H T2
BEEE A 49106,000,00058 7T 2 8 54
BE - AKEEDNBEEER BT
ZERRGEKETK BNALWA

RElE o
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(d) Claims have been made against certain
subsidiaries for damages in respect of alleged
defamation. Based on legal opinion, the
directors consider that the likelihood of the
Group suffering any material loss in respect of
these claims is remote and, accordingly, no
provision has been made in the financial
statements.

33. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

Capital commitments: B

Contracted for REIES)

32. AREBE (&)

(d) FHTHBRREY M MmERL®
R REFEZRER  EFRRAKE
ARl ERRMERZBERRIHKE
AR B LI 8 5 b 7 B S R P R
HAE A -

33, &IE

(@) BAREE

Group

rEE
2001 2000
—EE-F CZIZEETF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTERX FAT

31,832 —




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2001

B 5 98 2 0 12

33. COMMITMENTS (continued) 33. &I (&)

(b) Commitments under operating leases () HEHERE

=

—ET-F=A=1-A A%E
RIRIEN A I 2 A T R T

At 31 March 2001, the Group had commitments
under non-cancellable operating leases to make

NS

payments in the following year as follows: ST AERT
Group
rEHE
2001 2000
—BE2-F _ZTTETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Land and buildings expiring: RTFIFERfEm T KRBT -
Within one year —FR 3,387 288
In the second to fifth years, FE_EFERF
inclusive (BEEEME) 8,180 27
11,567 315
Other equipment expiring: B E B FE i 2 B Ath SR A
Within one year —F R 111 —
In the second to fifth years, FE_EZFEREF
inclusive (BEEEMEF) 799 —
910 —
Total operating lease commitments REHEAERE 12,477 315
(c) Forward foreign exchange contracts  (c) EHIINEE L 16,528 —
At the balance sheet date, the Company had no REEBR - AN0Q 8 I A B K&

material commitment.

i
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BEAEIRS

During the year, the Group had the following FA AEEZHEBEATETTIR
transactions with related parties, which were carried 5 ZERGTINAEEESEBBAIEF
T WIREABBHEAFE20KHE - £
WVIETEK FTMRAMAETCEEALR
also constitutes connected transactions as defined in Z

out in the normal course of the Group’s business, and
are disclosed in accordance with SSAP 20. Item (iv)

the Listing Rules:

2001 2000
—EE-F —ZTTTHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
Mt = FTEx FHET
Rental income received from associates KEBERNFZ (i) 205 —
B & WA
Management fee income received KE—MEEE QR 2
from an associate EHEEERWA (i) 200 —
Sales of photographic products to m—HEERAHEE
an associate M (i) 471 —
News services fee income received ’E—EHBEHIAZ
from a jointly controlled entity ERFEREERABA (i) 1,333 —
Printing services charges paid and B B e A — 2 R 42 )
payable to a jointly controlled entity NAIZERBIREER (i) 9,669 —
Reimbursement of expenses paid on MARGIZERERRZ
behalf of the Company to —HEBBEARIEER
an affiliate of the Company'’s RAREZNzAX
controlling shareholder (iv) 617 —
Acquisition of fixed assets from BARQRBIERBRZ
an affiliate of the Company’s — BB A R M
controlling shareholder EE & E (iv) 500 —
Acquisition of a subsidiary from an BARGERRKRE 2
affiliate of the Company’s — BB R R E
controlling shareholder — @8 A 7 (iv) 624 —
Purchases from Ricoh Photo A 38 e AR R 5 (320M)
Products (Asia) Limited BRDBEITRE (v) — 35,817
Notes: B E -
(i)  The rental income, management fee income and prices of (i) HEWRA BEERBRAKAMEYSEMZE

photographic products were determined between parties

with reference to the prevailing market price.

RAEHEEH2ERTMEMEE -
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35.

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(ii) The news services fee was charged on an annual fixed
amount basis pursuant to the news services agreement.
(iii) The printing service and rental expense were charged on a
cost plus mark-up basis pursuant to the printing agreement.
(iv) The reimbursement of expenses was charged at cost; the
acquisition of a subsidiary was charged at its book value and
the consideration of fixed assets was determined between
parties with reference to the prevailing market price.
(v)  Ricoh Photo Products (Asia) Limited is a company in which
Mr. Shigeo Katsuta (a non-executive director of the Company
who resigned on 20 July 2000) is a managing director. The
purchases were carried out at market price or, where no
market price was available, at cost plus mark-up basis.
PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2001 are as follows:
Nominal
Place of value of
incorporation/ issued share/
registration registered
Name of subsidiary and operations capital
AL/ ERTROEE
WELARER BRREELH & A
Artland International Hong Kong Ordinary
Limited BE AR

EEARARLT

Beijing Meitian Yingfu
Network Co., Ltd.*

EREREZBERE
BRAF!

People’s Republic
of China
REARLA

US$1,200,000
registered capital
1,200,000 7T

A E AR

34.

35.

BEALRS (&)

(i) HFERGEAREFERFHZESFER

e -

(i) ENRI AR 75 K2 10 & Ff % 4 EN 75 173 2 WO ER B AR

8 R -

(iv) BEEZFAXERARE  WENBARZ
X AREEENE - BEEEZRESR

BHET2ERTHEMEE -

(v) EXBE#RZ GEM BRARI—MHE
BEREE (KRR ZFAITES - N =
ZETFEL AT HEHE) EREFAK
B2RE - BERMEET W EAH

SEZME - RIERAEREF o

BB A RS

ARFEEHBEAT
+-RZHEDT

Percentage of
equity
attributable
to the Company
AAREGERE
BOl
Direct Indirect
EE &%

70 -

55 -

RZEE—F

A

Principal
activities

TEEH

Investment holding
REEK

Sale of photographic
products

Ry SMHE
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Flash Bright Development
Limited
SRERERLA

Global China Information
Services Limited

Global China Information
Technology (Beijing)
Limited

Global China Management
Services Limited

Global China Marketing
Limited (formerly known
as Botiny Limited)

RERRARDA
(MEEEEE
BRAR])

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
AR
BLRRE

Hong Kong
Bk

British Virgin
Islands/
Hong Kong
RERAHE/
BA

British Virgin
Islands/
Hong Kong
KERAHE/
BA

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Nominal

value of

issued share/
registered
capital
ERTRGEE/
HZMEX

HK$5,000,000
ordinary shares
5,000,000/ 7T
Lk

Us$1
ordinary share
IETEBR

Us$1
ordinary share
IETEBR

HK$20
ordinary shares
2078 705 i i

HK$10,000,000
ordinary shares
10,000,000/ 7T

EREL

35. B AFE (&)

Percentage of
equity
attributable
to the Company
KARELRA
B
Direct Indirect
EE %

- 100

100 —

Principal
activities

FERK

Distribution of
photographic products
e AL

Investment holding
REEK

Investment holding
REEK

Provision of
management
services to Group
companies
MEER A REEERS

Distribution of
photographic products
FEMDH
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. MIBARFHE (&)
Nominal
Place of value of Percentage of
incorporation/ issued share/ equity
registration registered attributable Principal
Name of subsidiary and operations capital to the Company activities
AL/ ERTROEE/ AAREGERE
WEARAR BERRE ZMEX BOk TEER
Direct Indirect
E#E CIE=:
Global China Media British Virgin Us$1 100 —  Investment holding
Technology Limited Islands/ ordinary share REERK
Hong Kong 1ETEBR
RERZHS/
N
Global China Multimedia British Virgin Us$1 100 —  Investment holding
Limited Islands/ ordinary share REERK
Hong Kong 1ETEBR
RERZHS/
N
Global China Trade Hong Kong HK$1,000 — 100 Distribution of
Development Limited e ordinary shares photographic
(formerly known as HK$50,000,000 products and
Perfect Treasure non-voting accessories, digital
Company Limited) deferred shares dictionaries and other
(AIBEEESERLA) 1,000 7T general merchandise
Rl BYEMEEHS BF
50,000,000/ 7T BEREM—REM
BREE 7
BRI
Golden Glory Technology British Virgin US$1 100 —  Investment holding
Limited Islands/ ordinary share REZK
Hong Kong 1ETERR
RERZHEE/
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Grandyear Inc.
BRERRA

Palun Trading Limited
RHMESHERRAA

Perfect Treasure
Holdings (BVI) Limited

Perfect Treasure
Investment Limited
BELXEARAA

Topgain Trading Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
AR
BLRRE

Western Samoa/
Hong Kong
REES/ &E

Hong Kong
EE

British Virgin
Islands/
Hong Kong
RBRAMES/
BiE

Hong Kong
Bk

British Virgin
Islands/
Hong Kong
RERAHE/
BA

Nominal

value of

issued share/
registered
capital
ERTRGEE/
HZMEX

Us$1

ordinary share
1T

Lk

HK$10,000
ordinary shares
10,0007 7T
EREL

US$1,000
ordinary shares
1,000% 7T

L

HK$100,000
ordinary shares
100,0007% JT
Lk

Us$1
ordinary share
IETEBR

35. B AFE (&)

Percentage of
equity
attributable
to the Company
KARELRA
B
Direct Indirect
EE %

- 100

100 —

100 —

Principal
activities

FERK

Dormant

EEE S

Investment holding
REEK

Investment holding
RERR

Securities trading and
investing
BEHREERRE

Group treasury
SEAE
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Name of subsidiary

WEARAEE

Bindaree Trading Limited

Evergreen Gardens Project
Inc.

Hong Kong iMail
Newspapers Limited

King Yip (Dongguan)
Printing and Packaging
Factory Limited®

% (R%) DRl B EK
AR RAA

Mapleleaf Holdings
Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
AL/
BERRE

British Virgin
Islands/
Hong Kong
RBRAES/
Bk

(Canada
mex

Hong Kong
BE

People’s Republic
of China
REARLA

Cayman Islands/
Hong Kong
FEHE/BE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. B ARFE (&)

Nominal

value of

issued share/
registered
capital
ERTROEE/
ZMEX

HK$8
ordinary shares
8B T R

($100
ordinary shares
1009070 & i@ A

HK$3,435,000
ordinary shares
3,435,000/ 7T & 18 X

HK$54,879,539
registered capital
54,879,539/ 7T

Us$1

ordinary share
Uss$2

redeemable
preference shares
IETEBR
ETAEEE LK

Percentage of
equity
attributable
to the Company
AAREGERE
BOl
Direct Indirect
EE &%

- 74.5

- 74.5

- 74.5

- 74.5

- 74.5

Principal
activities

TEEH

Property holding
NERE

Property investment

MERE

Newspaper publishing
and property holding
BEETIMERA

Printing
NI

Investment holding
REEKR
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Noble World Printing
Company Limited
SHARERAA

Roman Financial Press
Limited

Roman Property
Management Limited

Rosario Gardens Inc.

Sing Tao (Canada) Limited

Sing Tao Finance Limited

Nominal

Place of value of
incorporation/ issued share/
registration registered
and operations capital
AR BERTRAEE
BLRRE &
Hong Kong HK$300,000
N ordinary shares
300,00078 7T & 4 f

Hong Kong HK$1,000,000

e ordinary shares
1,000,0007% 7T & 58 i

The Republic of HKS$1
Liberia/ ordinary share
Hong Kong BT EER

M2 EAME/

BE
Canada ($100
nex ordinary shares
1009070 & i@ A
Canada ($1
mex ordinary share
($5,500,000
preference shares
L& @R
5,500,000 7T & % &
Hong Kong HK$2
EE ordinary shares

2ETEBEMK

35. B AFE (&)

Percentage of
equity
attributable
to the Company
KARELRA
B
Direct Indirect
EE %

— 74.5

— 74.5

— 74.5

— 74.5

— 74.5

— 74.5

Principal
activities

FERK

Printing
NI

Financial printing and
advertising agency
services

B E R R B s R
R %

Property holding
NERE

Property investment

NEEE

Investment holding
and property
holding

RERBREMERE

Financing intermediary

MR
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. B ARFE (&)

Nominal
Place of value of Percentage of
incorporation/ issued share/ equity
registration registered attributable Principal
Name of subsidiary and operations capital to the Company activities
AL/ ERTROEE/ AAREGERE
WEARAR BERRE ZMEX BOk TEER
Direct Indirect
E#E CIE=:
Sing Tao Holdings (BVI) British Virgin US$1 — 74.5  Investment holding
Limited Islands/ ordinary share REERK
Hong Kong 1ETEBR
RERAHE/BE
Sing Tao Holdings Limited* Bermuda HK$104,904,812 — 74,5 Investment holding
BRE ordinary shares REZK
104,904,8128 7T & i [k
Sing Tao Limited Hong Kong HK$77,650,000 — 74.5  Newspaper publishing
ESHRRA 55 ordinary shares and property holding
77,650,000/ 7t % i iR BREBTRDERF
Sing Tao Newspapers United States US$100,000 — 74.5  Newspaper publishing
Los Angeles Ltd. of America ordinary shares BEET
e 100,000% 7T % i i
Sing Tao Newspapers United States US$1,750,000 — 74.5  Newspaper publishing
New York Ltd. of America ordinary shares REET
e 1,750,0005 7T & i X
Sing Tao Newspapers Australia A$250,000 — 74.5  Newspaper publishing
Pty. Limited BN ordinary shares REET
250,000 7T & 18 fix
Sing Tao Newspapers United States US$250,000 — 74.5  Newspaper publishing

San Francisco Ltd.

of America
ES

ordinary shares
250,000% 7T % i ik

BERT
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Sing Tao (U.K.)
Limited

South China Binding
Limited
HEITRBERAA

South China Printing
Company (1988) Limited

BEDR (= AN)
ARRAA

Valiant Printing (Far East)

Limited

Wealthpop Limited
EHRAERAT

Nominal

Place of value of
incorporation/ issued share/
registration registered
and operations capital
AR BERTRAEE
BLRRE &
United Kingdom £100
HE ordinary shares
10058 B & &M

Hong Kong/ People’s HK$2
Republic of China ordinary shares
B/ REARLAE 2BETLERR
Hong Kong HK$2
N ordinary shares
2BETLERR

Hong Kong HK$3,000,000
EE ordinary shares
3,000,00078 7T & 8 B

Hong Kong HK$2
EiE ordinary shares
2ETLERR

*  Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

*  The subsidiary is a sino-foreign equity joint venture

#  The subsidiary is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise

35. B AFE (&)

Percentage of
equity
attributable
to the Company
KARELRA
B
Direct Indirect
EE %

- 74.5

- 74.5

- 74.5

- 74.5

- 74.5

Principal
activities

FERK

Newspaper publishing

RERT

Book binding
ERAE

Printing
NI

Printing
R

Property holding
NERE

© RNEBBARPHERAALD

tZMBARI R —ERIRELE

“ OZMBRARR-HNIEBELE
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35.

36.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results of the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets and/or liabilities
of the Group. To give details of all the Company’s
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

The subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31
March 2001 contributed HK$204,142,000 to the
Group’s turnover and HK$12,777,000 to the Group’s
net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group has
recorded the following significant post balance sheet
events:

(@) On 12 June 2001, the Group disposed of
31,576,000 shares of Sing Tao Holdings Limited
(“Sing Tao”) at HK$1.65 per share to certain
independent third parties. Sing Tao is a 74.5%
owned subsidiary of the Company and listed on
the Stock Exchange. The net sale proceeds were
approximately HK$52 million.

35.

36.

MEARFRE (&)
E=ZRR AEFEXGEIEX LRI
MEBAREE HARFRFANEKAEE

BER/RABFEZIETNG -EF
RER - HNARBMEMBRAR ZFHE
ECREBNITER -

REBEE-—ZEZ—F=A=+—HIFREK
BeHBARAAEEZXBEHT K
204,142,0007%% 7T+ £2 2 12,777,000 7T 2
REEBRRBEEBESEBSEEFE -

HERREHE
REERE  AREZGETIEREER
®EIA -

(a) MZZEZ—FXA+=H AEEMU
BR165BTAETEYE=ELE
31,576,000/% Sing Tao Holdings
Limited (2 &1) &1H - ES IR R
HHT4.5% 2 WERARF + WA
I - BEMBTSREFEY
52,000,0005% JT, °
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36. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued)

(b)

(d)

On 20 June 2001, Luckman, a controlling
shareholder of the Company, paid up the
remaining 90% of the cash subscription price of
HK$0.6388 per share for 132,000,000 preference
shares, the net proceeds received by the
Company therefor amounted to approximately
HK$76 million. On 20 June 2001, Luckman
exercised the conversion rights attached to these
fully paid-up preference shares and converted
them into 132,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company. Upon completion of the conversion,
Luckman became interested in 739,396,000
ordinary shares or 50.3% of the Company’s then
enlarged issued ordinary share capital.

On 21 June 2001, the Group entered into a joint
venture agreement to invest approximately
HK$12.2 million (RMB13 million) for a 20% stake
in Liancheng Hudong Software Co. Ltd.
(“Liancheng Hudong”). Liancheng Hudong is a
leading Customer Relationship Management
software provider in Zhong Guan Cun, Beijing,
the PRC. The goodwill on acquisition was
approximately HK$9 million.

On 26 June 2001, the Group had completed its
capital injection of HK$25,944,000
(RMB27,500,000) into Xinhua Online Info-tech
Company Limited (“XOL”), a joint venture in
which the Group has 55% equity interest. XOL is
a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in
Beijing, the PRC on 11 May 2001, the principal
activity of which is the provision of value-added
PRC business information.

37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the board
of directors on 26 July 2001.

36.

HEBREBE (B

(b)

(c)

(d)

RZBE—FXAZ+H XRQFAZ
% % A% B Luckman 3% 15 132,000,000
Be = R%0.6388 B L2 BRI S RE
BEHE#R90% » ANA "W HLZ P RIE
FEE4976,000,00008 70 c R T T —
FXAZ+H8 - Luckman fTESE
B AR B S BRI BE 2 AR I G 2
#173132,000,000fx R A &) 2 i@k o
ZEEH AL T 0 Luckman #H A
739,396,000 & B AR 5 AR A B B By 4%
B KB 17 8 AR AR 45 50.3%.2 1

E\

S o

i

%

A
N

T—FXA=-+—H F£%£E
RN —ARERARHE BEWY
12,200,000/ 7t (A R #13,000,000) -
VAR BB AR B BB A BR A &) ([ X
BE)])20%A% 1D o Bt B B) R Bl L
THENEREEEESRFZEEMH
FER o WKHE P EE A 2 P2 #99,000,000
BT o

Q

N —

R-ZEZ—FA-+,H K&EH
TR EAEEELSBRAESNE
ENE — MECREERNAR
NE([FEELZ]) T & 25,944,000
7T (AR #27,500,000) ° ¥TELER A
ZEE-FRAT+—HRFPRHILRK
NZHRINEERE HFEEBBE
RHUHABEREEB 2 EEEA -

37. #REMBHEE

EEeR _TTE-FELA-TRBHER
s R -




